
LAND· SURVEAR
IDENTIFICATION BASE DATA

Street Address: 409 East High Street

Map and Parcel: 53-33

Census Track & Block: 3-501
Present Owner: Albemarle County

Address:

Historic Name: Albemarle County Jail
t Date/Period: 1875

Style: Vernacular

Height to Cornice: 25
'-

Hei ght in Stori es : 2

Present Zoning: B-1,
Land Area (sq. ft.): 15 x 114
Assessed Value (1 and + imp.) : 23,490 + 35,700 = 59.190 ,

Present Use: Jail and Jailor's Residence
Original Owner: Albemarle County
Original Use: Jail and Jailor's Residence

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

The Jailor's house (c. 1870) is a si...~ple three bay, two story structure built on the traditional single pile
plan. The cornice is decorated with brackets supporting a low tin roof. As with other houses of the period,
the front entrance is shelte!:'ed by a single story veranda. The jail itself is reached t.hrough a wide arch
connected to the west end of the residence. The arch has been partially filled to provide room for the jailorts
office. The jail structure, naturally enough, is solidly built with walls three feet thick pierced w i.t.htiny
splayed windows covered with thick iron bars. The interior houses seven cells originally floored in stone, now
covered ~"ith cement. Fireproofing is assured with the vaul t.i.nq of the roof to make the entire structure free
of any wood members.

HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION

The construction of the county jail was begun on September 15, 1875. At that time the City of Charlottesville
transferred the title of the Crusman and Simpsin lets to Albemarle County. The city had purchased the Crusman
lot on September 3, paying $1,000 for the house and lot. The jail was the scene of the last legal hanging
in the state.
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STREET ADDRESS:
MAP a PARCEL: 53-33
CENSUS TRACT AND BLOCK:
PRESENT ZONING:
ORIGINAL OWNER: County of Albemarle
ORIGINAL USE: J ail
PRESENT USE: Vacant
PRESENT OWNER: Coun ty of Al bema r 1e

ADDRESS:

~/enlijfcalton
HISTORIC NAME:
DATE / PERIOD:
STYLE:
HEIGHT (to cornice)OR STORIES:
DIMENSIONS AND LAND AREA:
CONDITION:
SURVEYOR:
DATE OF SURVEY:
SOURCES:

Albemarle County Jail
1875

Bibb
Summer 1985
County Records
Alexander, RecollectionsofEarly Albemarle

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

The Albemarle County Jail consists of two sections of similar size, the western section built of stone and the eastern
of brick. Both are two storeys in height. The walls of the western section are constructed of coursed roughly
cut stone. The stones are of uniform height, but of varying width. The walls have been painted white at the first
storey level. The medium-pitched hip roof has projecting eaves and a boxed cornice and is covered with composition
shingles. The facade is three bays wide. Windows at the second storey level are narrow, double-sash, 6-over-6
Iight, with vertical iron bars on the inside. The windows have cut stone 1 intels. The eastern section projects
slightly beyond the western on both north and south elevations. Its walls are constructed of brick laid in 5-course
American bond. The mortar joints have been penciled. Its hip roof is continuous with that of the western section,
but it has more deeply projecting eaves and it is covered with slate. There are large exterior chimneys centered
on the front and rear elevations and small interior chimneys at the eastern ends of the front and rear elevation,
all with corbelled caps. There is also another exterior chimney, possibly newer. This section is four bays wide.
Its 2-over-2 1 ight windows are somewhat taller and wider than those in the western section, and they have exterior
iron bars and stone sills and lintels.

The jai 1 yard is surrounded by a brick wall seven bays long on the north and south elevations and three bays on
the east and west. The brick is mostly in 7-course American bond. The brickwork at the eastern end of the northern
wall is inferior to the rest. The piers have corbelled brick cornices and stepped caps. The wall between the piers
has the same corbelled cornice and stepped cap above recessed panels. The western section of the wall is set on
a high foundation of coursed fieldstone. The Jailor's House replaces the wall at the eastern end of the southern
elevation. Entrance to the jail is through a shed-roofed wing at the western end of the house that covers the
central bay of the jai 1 wall. It is constructed of brick laid in 5-course American-with-Flemish bond on the facade
and 7-course American bond on the side, with penci led mortar joints. Its medium-pitched shed roof is covered with
standing-seam metal. A large round-arched entrance fil Is most of the facade. It has a circular-headed pair of
board-&-batten doors. There is a circular-headed pair of wrought iron gates in the matching opening in the jai 1
yard wall. There is a 6-over-6 1ight window with moulded surrounds in the western wall of this entrance wing.

HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION

When Albemarle County (then including the present counties of Fluvanna, Buckingham, Nelson and Amherst) was formed
in 1744, orders were issued for the construction of a courthouse, prison, stocks, and pil lory just west of Scottsvil Ie.
The county seat was moved to Charlottesville in 1762, and a new jail was built on Court Square, probably by Will iam
Terrell. It was replaced about the end of the Revlution. There was dissatisfaction with the work of the builder,
probably Henry Gambell, and that building was only used 'for a few years. A I-storey stone jail, 16 feet square,
was bui It in 1785 and was replaced by another stone structure in 1798. This jail, built by Thomas Whitlow, was
renovated in 1846 and used until 1876. Alexander says it stood on the north side of the Public Square and that
a high wal Is was built around it sometime between 1828 and 1876.' New shipping post, stocks and pil lory were built
in 1820, and the whipping post is mentioned as late as 1857. When the County began making plans for a new jail
in 1875, the City of Charlottesvil Ie requested that it not be built on the same site. In return for the brick
jai lor's residence in front of the old jail on Court Square, the City donated land for the new jail north of High
Street (ACDS 72-42; 73-163, 172, 173 & 476; Supervisor's Minutes 9/3/1875). Construction began on 9/16/1875. G.
W. Spooner wa~ the architect, and J. J. Spooner was the contractor. It seems logical to assume that the two sections
of the jail were not built at the same time and that the stone section is the older, but local histories do not
mention it. It would not seem 1 ikely for the 1798 jail to have been moved and incorporated into the new bui lding.
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